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CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

GENERAL ACCOUNTING DIVISION

710 North 20th Street
GA 100 City Hall '

Birmingham, Alabama 35203

(205) 254-2182
Fax: (205) 254-2337

December 30, 2009

To the Honorable Mayor
City Council Members
Citizens of the City of Birmingham

The City of Birmingham’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, is hereby submitted. This report represents the official
comprehensive publication of the City’s financial position at June 30, 2009.
Responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, and fairness of the data, including all
disclosures, rests with management of the City of Birmingham. The basis of reliance for
the financial statements is a comprehensive framework of internal control; because the
cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the statements are free of any material
misstatements.

In compliance with the City’s Mayor-Council Act, the submitted financial
statements were subjected to an independent audit. Banks, Finley, White & Company,
CPA’s have issued an unqualified opinion on the City of Birmingham’s financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2009. Their report is located at the front of the
financial section of the CAFR.

Additionally, the City of Birmingham is responsible as a recipient of federal and
state assistance to ensure an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. The City is
required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single
Audit Act of 1984 and the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of State and Local Governments.
Information regarding the single audit which includes the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards, findings and recommendations, and the auditor’s reports on the internal
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control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations is included in a
separate report and is available upon request,

Immediately following the auditor’s report is the City’s Management Discussion
and Analysis (MD& A) which provides in a narrative format an introduction, overview,
and analysis of the basic financial statements. This letter of transmittal should be read in
conjunction with the MD& A.

CITY PROFILE AND REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Birmingham was incorporated in 1871 and is cenirally located in the
State of Alabama. It operates under a mayor-council form of government. The Mayor is
elected at large and serves a four-year term. The Council is composed of nine members —
one from each of the Birmingham districts. They are elected by district and serve a four-
year term.

Included in this report is an organizational chart showing the twenty-four
departments responsible for the administration and operation of the City of Birmingham.
These departments provide valuable services to the citizens such as police and fire
protection, maintenance and construction of highways and streets, recreational and
cultural activities, sanitation services, and libraries and museums. The City report
includes separately the financial operations of two legal entities — the Birmingham
Airport Authority and the Birmingham Parking Authority — for which it is financially
accountable. Additional information regarding these two discretely presented component
units is provided in the notes to the financial statements (Note 1A).

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

The City of Birmingham’s local economy is driven by the service industry. The
University of Alabama in Birmingham (UAB) and its medical centers remain the
dominant factor in the City’s economic picture. Additionally, the City has benefited from
the redevelopment agreements it partnered in over the recent years. In fiscal year 2009,
the City began an Economic Stimulus Loan Program to encourage small businesses to
open new businesses and expand their existing ones. A total of approximately $2.3
million was loaned to four businesses.

The City saw an economic downturn in the last fiscal year just as the nation has
experienced; the revenue projections for the current fiscal year have been adjusted to
reflect the lack of growth and the City is taking measures to cut their expenses in line
with this.

FUTURE INITIATIVES

The relocation and retention of Trinity Medical Center in the former HealthSouth
Digital Hospital site and the partnership of the Daniel Corporation, is projected to add
more than 5,000 jobs to the Birmingham workforce and spur significant economic



growth. Once completed, the new medical campus will feature a state-of-the-art medical
facility, commercial office space and a variety of retail shopping and new restaurants.

In fiscal year 2009, the City broke ground on the new Fair Park, located on the
grounds of the former Alabama State Fairgrounds. The $55 million facility will include a
multitude of athletic amenities for the City’s youth including a natatorium and indoor
track. Other plans for the site include an indoor golf-driving range and a variety of retail
shopping and restaurants that promise to bring a dramatic change to the landscape of the
most densely populated region in the entire state of Alabama.

Another project with deep roots and sacred memories to the community is the
reconstruction of the Civil Rights and Heritage Trail. This project seeks to mark the trail
traveled by the City’s pioneers in the struggle for justice and equality. The trail will
feature freestanding, iron-cast signs that denote the exact location where significant
action took place during the city’s turbulent 1960’s.

Rated the State’s number one tourist attraction by the Alabama Bureau of
Tourism, the Birmingham Zoo already has a significant impact on the City of
Birmingham. A proposed one-of-a-kind natural open-air habitat called the “Trails of
Africa”, will unfold on six acres of land already within the zoo’s footprint. Once
complete the Zoo will be primed to compete both regionally and nationally among some
of the country’s best zoos.

ACHIEVEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(“GFOA”™) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious
national award presented to state and local governments for publishing an easily readable
and efficiently organized CAFR whose contents conform to program standards and
complies with generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements. The Certificate is valid for a period of one year. The City of Birmingham
has received the award for the last 32 consecutive years. We believe our current CAFR
continues to conform to Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are
submitting it to GFOA for consideration.

Additionally, the City of Birmingham’s budget report for the fiscal year beginning
July 1, 2008, was awarded the Government Finance Officer’s Association Award for
Distinguished Budget Presentation. In order to receive this award, a governmental unit
must publish a document that meets program criteria as a policy document, as an
operations guide, as a financial plan, and as a communications device. The City believes
its current budget report also meets the above criteria, and we have submitted it to the
GFOA for consideration.



Preparation of this document was made possible by the dedicated efforts of the
staff of the Finance Department and Administration. I wish to express my appreciation to
them and other department employees who contributed to the publication of this report
with particular thanks to the City’s Chief Accountant, Virginia Spidle and the entire
General Accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Henry Young, III
Acting Director of Finance
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of
Birmingham for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, is offered by management of the
City to the readers of the financial report. Please read it in conjunction with the letter of
transmittal presented on pages 2-5 and the financial statements beginning on page 7.

Financial Highlights

*Total net assets for the City of Birmingham decreased by $43 million during the past
fiscal year.

*The assets of the City of Birmingham exceeded its liabilities at the close of June 30,
2009, by $238 million.

«The City of Birmingham’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $365 million as of June 30, 2009, a decrease of $69 million over the prior fiscal year.

*Unreserved, undesignated fund balance at June 30, 2009, for the City’s general fund was
$95 million, 23% of total general fund expenditures.

*The City of Birmingham’s total debt liability decreased by $3 million during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009.

Overview of Financial Statements

Following this discussion the City of Birmingham’s basic financial statements are
presented. There are three components to these financial statements.

1. Government-wide financial statements

2. Fund financial statements

3. Notes to the financial statements

1. The government-wide financial statements give readers a broad overview of
the finances of the City of Birmingham in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
They are composed of two individual statements — the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities.

The statement of net assets presented on pages 22 & 23 reports all of the City of
Birmingham’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net
assets. Qver time, increases or decreases in net assets could serve as a useful indicator
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presented on page 24 shows the changes in the City of
Birmingham’s net assets during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This statement is
prepared on the full accrual basis of accounting meaning that all changes to net assets are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs regardless of the
timing of related cash flows.

11



The government-wide statements show separately the governmental activities and
the business-type activities. The governmental activities are those supported mainly by
taxes and mtergovernmental revenues. The City of Birmingham’s activities (functions)
include public safety, environment and street, cultural and recreation, and general
government. The business-type activity for the City is supported by user charges which
are intended to cover all or a significant portion of the activity costs. The City of
Birmingham’s business-type activity is the operation of the Emergency Communications
District, better known as E-911.

2. Fund financial statements report the City’s operations in more detail than what
is presented in the government-wide financial statements. Fund financial statements
include the statements for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide statements. The focus for
reporting the activities on the fund financial statements is on near-term inflows and
outflows of spendable resources as well as balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the City’s near-
term financing needs.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balance included in this report provide reconciliations
to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

In fiscal year 2009, the City of Birmingham reported as major funds the General
Fund, the Birmingham Fund, the Debt Reserve and Debt Service Funds, and the Capital
Improvement Fund. The other City funds are reported aggregately as non-major funds.
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the
form of combining statements found beginning with pages 78 and 82 of this report.

The City of Birmingham adopts an annually appropriated budget for its general
fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to
demonstrate compliance with the budget. The basic governmental fund financial
statements can be found on pages 25-26 of this report.

Proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The City maintains one type
of proprietary fund, the Emergency Management Community District (E-911) which is
an enterprise fund. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on
pages 29-31 of this report.
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Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
external to the City of Birmingham. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-
wide financial statements because the resources are not available to support the City’s
own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to that used for
proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary statements can be found on pages 32-33 of this
report.

3. Notes to the financial statements are provided to give the reader additional
information that is essential to understanding the data presented in the government-wide
and fund financial statements.

Other required supplementary information is also presented in this report
concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its
employees. Required supplementary information can be found in the notes to the
financial statements for the pension funds beginning on page 57 of this report.
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The following table summarizes the major features of the basic financial
statements of the City of Birmingham.

Table of Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary Funds
Financial Funds Funds
Statements
Scope Entire City Activities of the City  Activity of the City Activities for which
government {except  that are not that operates similar  the City acts as
fiduciary funds) proprietary or to businesses trustee for someone
fiduciary else’s resources

Required financial
statements

sStatement of net
asseis

sStatement of
activities

sBalance sheet
sStatement of
FEVENUES,
expenditures, and
changes in fund
balance

sStatement of net
assets

=Statement of
FeVenues, eXpenses,
and changes in net
assets

sStatement of cash
flows

sStatement of
fiduciary net assets
sStatement of
changes in fiduciary
net assets

Accounting basis and
measurement focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Modified accrual
accounting and
current financial
resources focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Type of
asset/liability
information

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and capital,
and short-term and
lang-term

Only nssets expected
to be liquidated and
liabilities that come
due during the year
or soon thereafter; no
capital assets nor
long-term debt
included

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and capital,
and short-term and
long-term

All assets and
liabilities, both short-
term and long-term

Type of
inflow/outflow
information

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid

*Revenues for which
cash is received
during or scon after
the end of the year
=Expenditures when
goods or services
have been received
and payment is due
during the year or
soon thereafter

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid
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Government-Wide Condensed Financial Information

Net assets represent the difference between the City of Birmingham’s total assets
and its total liabilities. Changes in the net assets can be a useful measuring tool to gauge
performance over time. The City’s net assets that are invested in capital assets net of
related debt reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery and
equipment, infrastructure), less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for spending. Although the City’s investment in capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other revenue sources since the capital assets themselves cannot
be liquidated to satisfy these liabilities.

The City of Birmingham’s restricted net assets of approximately $2635 million are
subject to bond and warrant covenants and by federal and state grant requirements.
Overall, the City’s total net assets decreased by approximately $43 million in fiscal year
2009. For additional details on the reconciliation between the two basis, see page 27 of
this report.

There was a decrease in net assets of $582,000 in the Emergency Management
Communication District, the City’s enterprise fund. This was due mainly to increased
administrative costs.

The following table presents a condensed statement of the City’s net assets at
June 30, 2009 and 2008:
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Table 2

Current and other assets

Capital assets, net

Total assets

Current and other
liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt

Restricted

Unrestricted

Net assets

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2009 and 2008

{in thousands)

Governmental Business-Type Totals
Activities Activities
06/30/09 06/30/08 ©06/30/09 06/30/08 06/30/09 06/30/08

$517,969 577,935 (1,164} (463} 516,805 577,472
382,963 354,054 1,022 901 383,985 354,955
900,832 931,989 (142) 438 900,790 932,427
73,481 61,875 3 1 73,484 61,876
585,710 596,838 585,710 506,838
659,191 658,713 3 1 659,194 658,714
65,727 74,322 1,022 901 66,749 75,223
264,602 277,817 264,602 277,817
(88,588} {78,663) (1,167) (464) {89,755} (79,327)
$241,741 273,276 {145} 437 241,596 273,713
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REVENUES:

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants

General revenues:
Sales and use tax
Occupational tax
Property tax
Unrestricted grants and

contributions

Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

EXPENSES:

Program expenses:
General government
Public safety
Streets and sanitation
Culture and recreation

Interest on long-term debt

Total expenses

Increase (Decrease) in net assets
Beginning net assets

Ending net assets

** Beginning net assets for governmental activities was restated by $10,792 for the City's negative

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For Years Ended June 3¢, 2009 and 2008
(in thousands)

Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals
6/30/09 06/30/08 06/30/09 06/30/08 06/30/09 06/3G/08
$116,419 108,527 3,447 3,308 119,866 111,838
15,094 19,830 15,094 19,830
131,904 129,732 131,904 129,732
76,325 76,918 76,325 76,918
61,663 62,698 61,663 62,698
26,060 19,975 26,060 19,975
(4,201) 10,684 15 68 (4,186) 10,752
8,407 g,116 8,407 8,116
431,671 436,480 3,462 3,376 435,133 439,856
121,554 88,799 121,554 88,799
169,083 163,149 4,044 3,935 173,127 167,084
121,848 93,821 121,848 93,821
36,132 43,895 36,132 43,895
25,381 27,643 25,381 27,643
473,998 417,307 4,044 3,935 478,042 421,242
(42,327) 19,173 (582) (559) {42,909) 18,614
284,068 254,103 437 996 284,505 255,099
$241,741 $273,276 ${145) $437 $241,596 $273,713

niet pension obligation which is shown as an asset on the government-wide balance sheet
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As shown in this table, the City’s revenues from its governmental activities
decreased by $4.8 million, or a 1.1% decline, from fiscal year 2008. Tax revenues
remained relatively stable from the prior fiscal year; however, investment earnings
declined sharply.

Expenditures increased approximately $57 million from fiscal year 2008, or a 9%
increase; the largest component of this increase was due to much needed repairs and
maintenance on the City’s infrastructure.

The business-type activity’s expenditures increased $848,000 while the user fees
only increased $139,000. An increase in user fees is being considered in order to update
equipment used by the Emergency Management Communication District.

Fund Analysis
Changes in fund balances for the City’s major governmental funds for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009, are as follows:

B;illznnégg Increase (Decrease) g:iglii
General Fund $117,482 $ (22,701 $ 94,781
Birmingham Fund 84,968 (11,521) 73,447
General Bond Debt Reserve 41,454 (1,732) 39,722
General Bond Debt Service 1,751 (1,298) 453
Capital Improvement Fund 57.362 5.257 62.619
$303.017 § (31.995) $271.022

Governmental Funds

The focus of the reporting of the City’s governmental funds is to provide
information regarding near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The fund balance of the General Fund decreased mainly due to an increase in
spending for repairs and maintenance, transfers to the capital improvement fund, and a
decline in the investment earnings. The Birmingham Fund’s decrease in fund balance
was due for the most part to a $10 million loss in investment earnings.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide
additional details for the changes in specific funds. This statement can be found on
page 26.

Budget Variances in the General Fund

During the fiscal year, revisions were made to the original budget adopted by the
City due to changes in projected revenues. Amendments were also made in the projected
expenditures including additional appropriations.
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Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt Activity

Capital Asset Activity

At June 30, 2009, the City of Birmingham reported approximately $383 million in
net capital assets, including its infrastructure, for governmental activities. The City’s
Emergency Management Communication District reported approximately $1 million in
net capital assets. The notes to the financial statements on pages 48 and 49 provide more
information on capital assets including the changes that occurred during the fiscal year.

Long-term Debt Activity

At June 30, 2009, the City of Birmingham had approximately $545 million of
outstanding debt for its bonds and warrants; of this amount, approximately $514 million
is considered long-term. The notes to the financial statements on pages 51-53 include
additional details for the City’s long-term debt activity.

The City’s bond ratings are AA, Aa3, and AA- by Standard & Poor’s, Moody's,
and Fitch respectively. The City’s broad and diverse economy as well as its consistent
strong financial performance are the basis for these ratings.

The notes to the financial statements contain more detailed information regarding
the City’s long-term debt and the changes that occurred during the fiscal year. Please
refer to them for additional information including the City’s obligations for capitalized
equipment leases, workmen’s compensation claims, closure and postclosure costs, and
compensated absences. The City does not have any debt for its enterprise fund.

Economic Factors Affecting the City of Birmingham and the 2010 Budget
Information

Birmingham has not been immune from the economic slowdown that has strained
the budgets of neighboring municipalities and most American cities. While the City can’t
control larger outside forces that direct the nation’s and region’s economies, through
sound fiscal management we have been able to control how Birmingham adapts to the
changes.

The City considered several factors in preparing the City’s budget for the 2010 fiscal year
such as:

e The U.S. economy continues to feel the effects of the most difficult economic
period since the 1930’s. Rising unemployment, the housing crisis, turmoil in the
financial markets and the lowest consumer price index numbers in almost 30
years present challenges to all governments.

» The general climate of the economy has an adverse impact on State and Local
economies. Because much of the City’s revenue is consumer driven (Sales, Use,
Occupational & Business License taxes), the above mentioned circumstances
translate into reduced revenues for our city.
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The City is able to meet its obligations and maintain quality services for its
citizens in spite of budgetary challenges caused by the sluggish economy. The City
continues to develop both short and long range strategies to achieve fiscal stability and
effectively address the future financial position of the City.

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to give a general overview of the City of
Birmingham’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information may be sent to the

following:
Director of Finance

710 North 20" Street, Suite A-100
Birmingham, AL 35203

20



Basic Financial Statements




City of Birmingham, Alabama
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009
{in thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and investments $350,604 52,348 $352,952 $23,812
Cash with escrow agent 2,357 2,357
Receivables:
Accrued interest 1,030 1,030
Accrued taxes receivable 24,351 24,351
Accounts (net of uncoliectibles) 5,728 5,728 903
Notes (net of uncollectibles) 608 608
Loans 5,669 5,669
Due from other governments 4,558 4,558 2,186
Special assessments 10,169 10,169
Interfund balances 3,512 (3,512) 0
Inventories 1,169 1,169
Prepaid items 280 280 402
Due from component unit 1,051 1,051
Other current assets 497 497
Total unrestricted assets 411,583 (1,164) 410,419 27,303
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 15,657
Investments 4,589
Accounts and grants receivable 2,368
Accrued interest receivable 20
Total restricted assets 22,634
Total current assets 411,583 {1,164) 410,419 49,937
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Other assets:
Deferred charges 26,394 26,394 1,172
Net pension obligation 10,792 10,792
Due from other governments 69,200 69,200
Total other assets 106,386 106,386 1,172
Capital assets:
Land 137,398 137,388 129,685
Buildings and capltal facilities 183,779 1,025 194,804 106,263
Furniture and other equipment 150,353 2,352 152,705 15,842
Accumulated depreciation (219,797) (2,355) (222,152) (65,355)
Infrastructure 197,515 197,515 154,959
Accumulated depreclation, infrastructure {113,171) (113,171) {65,977)
Construction in progress 36,886 36,886 37,408
Net capital assets 382,963 1,022 383,885 352,835
Tetal noncurrent assets 489,349 1,022 490,371 354,007
TOTAL ASSETS $900,932 (3142) $900,790 $403,944

The accompanying notes are an {ntegral part of these financial statements.
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City of Birmingham, Alabama
Statement of Net Assets

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable from unrestricted assets:
Accounts and vouchers payable
Contracts payable-retainage
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes payable
Due to primary government
Estimated claims payable
Other liabilities
Deferred revenue
Interest payable
Current maturities of long-term liabilities:
Capitalized leases
Compensated absences
Bonds and warrants payable
Total payable from unrestricted assets

Payable from restricted assets:
Contracts payable
Accrued interest payabie
Current portion of revenue bonds payable
Total payable from restricted assets
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Capitalized leases
Compensated absences
Bonds and warrants payable, net
Closure and postciosure costs
Workers' compensation claims payable
OPEB liahility

Total long-term liahilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for future projects
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

June 30, 2009
(in thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$13,284 1 $13,285 $993
727 727
11,156 2 11,158 153
1,051
1,948 1,948
2,469 2,469
41
5,987 5,987
6,387 6,387
718 718 K]
30,805 30,805
73,481 3 73,484 2,277
1,734
1,345
3,755
6,834
73,481 3 73,484 9,111
20,944 20,944
15,332 15,332 576
532,092 532,092 68,629
7,692 7,692
2,836 2,836
6,814 5,814
585,710 585,710 69,205
659,191 3 659,194 78,316
65,727 1,022 66,749 281,623
103,377 103,377 10,421
161,225 161,225 9,134
(88,588) {1,167) (89,755) 24,450
241,741 (145} 241,596 325,628
$800,932 ($142) $800,790 $403,944

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASSETS
Cash and investments
Cash with flscal agent
Receivables:
Accrued Interest
Accrued taxes
Accounts {net of uncollectibles)
Notes {net of uncollectibles)
Loans
Due from other governments
Speciai assessments
Due from other funds
Due from component units
Inventaries
Prepald items
Other
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Accounts and vouchers payable
Coentracts payable-retainage
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Due to other funds

Deferred revenus

Estimated claims payable

Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for debt service
Reserved for prepald items
Reserved for capital projects
Unreserved reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

City of Birmingham, Alabama

Balance Sheat

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2008
{in thousands)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BA{LANCES 146,330

Negative net penslon obligation is not a financial resource and not reported in the funds

Deferrad revenuas are not recognized until available In the funds

General General Capital Other Total
Birmingham Bond Debt Bond Debt Improvement Governmental Governmental
General Fund Resarve Service Fund Funds Funds

$101,304 $73,007 $39,291 $455 36,756 § 98,7 $350,603
2,357 2,357

¢

180 480 280 14 75 1,030
23,682 151 401 138 24,352
5,633 95 5,728
320 283 608
2,329 3,339 5,669

2 72,855 a1 73,758

10,168 10,169

10,015 26,259 36,274
1,051 1,051
1,169 1,168
280 280

445 53 4397
$146,390 $73,487 112,577 455 63,430 117,206 513,545
9,503 40 2 707 3,033 13,285
104 623 727

10,969 187 11,156
26,259 6,502 32,761
528 72,855 13,142 86,523
1,048 1,948
2,404 64 2,468
51,609 40 72,855 2 811 23,551 148,868
39,722 453 40,175

280 280
73,447 62,618 99,168 235,234

94,501 94,501
(1,847) (1,847)
{3,668) (3.666)

94,781 73,447 39,722 453 62,619 93,655 364,677

73,487 112,577 455 63,430 117,206
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and are not reported in the funds 382,962
10,792
Long-term ilabilities are not due and payabls in the current period and are not reported in the funds {603,213)
86,523

244,741

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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REVENUES:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergavernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeltures
Investment Income
Other operating revenues
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety
Street and sanltation
Cuitural and recreational
General government
Total current operations

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fees
Total debt service
Capital outlays

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess {deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Proceeds from capital lease

Transfers In
Transfers out

Net other flnancing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

City of Birmingham, Alabama

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 200%

(In thousands)

General General Capital Other Total
Birmingham Bond Debt Bond Debt Improvement Governmental Governmental

General Fund Reserve  Service Fund Funds Funds
$245,249 29,686 1,703 $276,738
87,525 B7,525
16,227 41 6,898 18,161 41,327
13,985 74 14,068
§,322 1,622 7,944
2,389 (10,303) 2,160 7 189 1,359 (4,199)
§,742 51 829 7,622
378,548 {10,303) 31,887 7 7,138 23,748 431,028
172,837 4,351 177,188
52,083 331 52,414
34,651 338 34,990
81,266 735 8,707 17,263 118,030
350,837 795 [1] 8,707 22,284 382,622
5,400 18,330 2,205 25,835
5,275 13 16,581 1,849 486 24,204
10,675 ] 13 34,911 4,054 486 50,139
44,673 289 11,617 37,172 93,751
406,185 1,084 13 34,911 24,78 59,942 526,513
{27,636) {11,387) 31,874 {34,304} {17,240} {36,184) (95,487)
26,500 26,500
1,690 33,606 24,472 3,482 63,250
{23,255) (134)  (33,606) {1,975) {4,280) {63,250
4,935 (134) ~ (33,606) 33,606 22,457 (798} 28,500
[22,701) {11,521) (1,732) {1,298} 5,257 (36,992} {€8,987)
117,482 84,968 41,454 1,751 57,362 130,647 431,664
$94,781 §73,447 $39,722 5453 562,619 593,655 5364,677

The accompanylng notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Birmingham, Alabama
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
{in thousands)

Net change, decrease, in fund balances - total governmental funds 5 {68,987)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the
statement of activities, however, these costs are aliocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation
in the current period. 28,898

The repayment of principal of long-term debt uses current resources of

governmental funds but has no effect on net assets 25,615
Issuance of new capital [ease {26,500)
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not

require the use of current financial resources and are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds:

Change in compensated absences (1,154)

Change in closure and postclosure costs (78)

Amortization of deferred charges (749)

Change In interest payahle 367 {1,614)
Revenue not recognized until future years {2,212)
Revenue recognized in a prior year 2,968
Elimination of interfund receivable {505)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 10 261
Change, increase, in net assets of governmental activities ($42,327)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Other operating revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Public safety
Environment and street
Cultural and recreation
General government
Debt service
Capital outiays

Total expenditures

City of Birmingham, Alabama
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

(in thousands)

Deficiency of expenditures over revenues

Other financing uses

Deficiency of expenditures and other uses over revenues

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Budget Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
$263,534 $263,651 $245,349 ($18,302)
90,724 981,724 87,525 {4,199)
15,400 16,082 16,227 145
12,419 12,554 13,995 1,441
4,130 5,283 6,322 1,039
10,206 10,308 9,131 (1,177)
396,413 399,602 378,549 (21,053)
180,784 175,700 172,837 {2,863)
56,370 53,047 52,083 (964)
35,939 35,472 34,651 {821)
84,645 96,975 91,266 {5,709)
7,818 7,816 10,675 2,858
51,386 30,982 44,673 13,692
416,940 399,992 406,185 6,193
($390) (27,6386) ($27,246)
4,935
(22,701)
117,482

$94,781

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments
Total current assets

Property, plant, and equipment:
Buildings and systems
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Less accumulated depreciation
Total property, plant, and equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll & payroll taxes
Due to other funds

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted

NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

City of Birmingham, Alabama
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
Emergency Management Communication District

29

June 30, 2009
{in thousands)

$2,348

2,348

1,025
2,329
23

(2,355)

1,022

$3,370

$1
2
3,612

3,515

1,022
{1,167)

(145)

$3,370




Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assats

Emergency Management Communication District
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

OPERATING REVENUES:
Service fees

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Public safety

General and administrative
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES:

Interest income
Net loss
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

City of Birmingham, Alabama

Proprietary Fund

{in thousands)

30

$3,447

3,512
489
23

20

4,044

(597)

15

(582)

437

($1485)




City of Birmingham, Alabama
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
Emergency Management Communication District
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers
Cash payments to employees

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from and related financing activities:

Acquisition of capital assets

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and investments, beginning of year
Cash and investments, end of year

{(in thousands)

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used by

operating activities:
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities:

Bepreciation
Change in prepaid items

Change in accounts payable and contracts payable

Change in due to other funds
Net cash from operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$3,447
(3,866)
(50)
{469)

{141}

15

(595)
2,943

$2,348

(5597)

20
11

2
85

($469)



City of Birmingham, Alabama
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds
June 30, 2009
{in thousands)

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents ($13,796)
Recelvables:
Members 3s
Member loans 10,691
Interest and dividends 4,736
Investments, at fair value:
U. 8. Governiment obligations 208,659
Domestic corporate bonds 218,788
Domestic stocks 393,649
TOTAL ASSETS 820,762
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other 557
TOTAL LIABILITIES 557
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for future pension benefits $820,205

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ADDITIONS:

Contributions:

Employer contributions

Plan member contributions
Total contributions

Investment income:
Investment earnings

Securities lending

Less investment expenses
Net investment income

Other income

TOTAL ADDITIONS
DEDUCTIONS:

Benefits

Refunds of contributions
Administrative expenses

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

Net decrease

City of Birmingham, Alabarma

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Pension Trust Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

(in thousands)

Net assets held In trust for future pension benefits:

Beginning of year
End of year

$16,980
16,563
33,543

{101,481)
2,700

~ {98,781)
{2,466)

T (101,247)

480
(67,244)
53,994
903
1,029
65,926
{133,170)

953,374
$820,205

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Birmingham, Alabama
Statement of Net Assets - Component Units

{in thousands)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and investments
Receivabiles:
Accounts (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
Due from othar governments
Prepaid items
Total unrestricted assets

Restricted asseots:
Cash and cash equivalents
Invastments
Grants and accounts recelvable
Accrued interest receivable
Total restricted assets
Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Other assets:
Deferrad charges

Capital assets:
Land
Buildings and capital facilities
Machinery and equipment
Accumnulated depreciation
Infrastructure

Accumulated depreciation
Construction in progress
Total capital assets
Total noncurrent assets
TOTAL ASSETS

June 30, 2009

(10f2)
Component Units
Birmingham Birmingham
Airport Parking
Authority Authority Total

$20,018 $3,794 $23,812

868 35 903

2,154 32 2,186

402 402

23,442 3,861 27,303
15,657 15,657

4,589 4,589

2,368 2,368

20 20

22,634 22,634
46,076 3,861 49,837

1,172 1,172
127,755 1,940 129,695
106,263 106,263
15,077 765 15,842
{65,355) {65,355}
194,859 194,859
(65,977) (65,977)
37,869 (461) 37,408
350,591 2,244 352,835
351,763 2,244 354,007
$397,839 $6,105 $403,944

Tha accompanying notes are an integrai part of these financial statements.
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LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payable from Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts and vouchers payable
Accrued payroll and payrol! taxes

Due to primary govarrment
Compensated absences

Deferred revenue

Total payable from unrestricted assets

Payable from Restricted Assets:
Construction contracts payable

Accrued interest payable

Current portion of revenue bonds payable
Total payable from restricted assets

Tatal current Habilitios

Long-term lizhilitles:
Compensated absences
Revenue bonds payable, net
Total long-term liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested In capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

Debt service

Federal grants and programs
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

City of Birmingham,
Statement of Net Assets - Component Units

Alabama

June 30, 2009
(In thousands)

{2 of 2}

Component Units

Birmingham Birmingham
Airport Parking
Authority Authority Total
$928 $65 §983
153 153
1,051 1,051
39 39
41 4
928 1,349 2,277
1,734 1,734
1,345 1,345
3,755 3,755
6,834 6,834
7,762 1,349 9,111
369 207 576
68,629 68,629
68,998 207 69,205
76,760 1,556 78,316
279,379 2,244 281,623
10,421 10,421
9,134 9,134
22,145 2,305 24,450
321,079 4,549 325,628
$397,839 $6,108 $403,944

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financiai statements,
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CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Reporting Entity

The City of Birmingham, located in Alabama, is a municipal corporation that
was incorporated on December 19, 1871. The City operates under a Mayor-
Council form of government as provided by Act No. 425 of the Alabama
Legislature (The Mayor-Council Act) and is comprised of a Mayor elected at
large and a nine-member council that is elected by district.

The financial statements of the City have been presented in conformity with
accounting principles accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applied to governmental units, The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The accompanying financial statements present the City and its component
units, entities for which the City of Birmingham is considered to be
financially accountable. The City’s discretely presented component units are
presented in total in a separate column in the government-wide financial
statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City.

Discretely presented component units

* The Birmingham Airport Authority (BAA) is a seven-member board
appointed by the City and is a non-profit corporation under the provisions of
the Code of Alabama. The Authority is responsible for the operations of the
Birmingham International Airport. Because the City of Birmingham appoints
the BAA’s governing body and the City is obligated in some manner for the
debt of the BAA, the Authority is included as a component unit in these
financial statements. The BAA’s fiscal year ends June 30,

The BAA reimburses the City for the cost of providing security and fire
protection services to the Airport. Amounts charged by the City for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009, totaled $3,963,366.

* The Birmingham Parking Authority (BPA) is a three-member board
appointed by the City and operates parking facilities in the City and also acts
as a financing agent for certain other parking facilities. Because the City
appoints the BPA’s governing body, the City is obligated to provide and
receives specific financial benefits, and the City is obligated in some manner
for the debt of the BPA, the Authority is included as a component unit in these
financial statements. The BPA’s fiscal year ends June 30.
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Complete financial statements for each component unit may be obtained at the
following administrative offices:

Birmingham Airport Authority

5900 Airport Highway

Birmingham, Alabama 35222

Financial statement date: June 30, 2009

Birminéham Parking Authority

1732 5™ Avenue North

Birmingham, Alabama 35203
Financial statement date: June 30, 2009

Related Organizations

The City of Birmingham is also responsible for appointing a voting majority
of the boards of other organizations, but the City’s financial accountability for
these organizations does not extend beyond making the appointments. The
City appointed a voting majority of the Birmingham-Jefferson County Transit
Authority (BJCTA) and the Birmingham Housing Authority (BHA). In fiscal
year 2009, the City appropriated to the BJCTA $5,296,997 and $39,565 to the
BHA. These organizations are related organizations that have not been
included within the City’s financial statements.

Joint Venture

As defined in GASB Statement No. 14, a joint venture is a legal entity or
other organization that results from a contractual arrangement and is owned,
operated, or governed by two or more participants as a separate and specific
activity subject to joint control, in which the participants retain (1) an ongoing
financial interest or (2) an ongoing financial responsibility. The City
participates in the Birmingham-Jefferson County Civic Center Authority
(BICCA) which was created by the Alabama Legislature as a public
corporation authorized to construct, maintain, operate, and manage a civic
center in the City of Birmingham, Jefferson County, Alabama. The BIJCCA
also owns a hotel that is managed by an independent operator. The City is a
joint participant in the BJCCA with Jefferson County; each is obligated by
contract to remit amounts to supplement the BJCCA’s operating revenues. In
accordance with the interlocal agreement, the City remitted $3,000,000 to the
BICCA during fiscal year 2009. The City does not have an equity ownership
in this joint venture. Separate financial statements indicated a change in net
assets of $17,374,009 for the year ended August 31, 2008; net assets at August
31, 2008 totaled $131,305,875. These are the most current figures available.
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B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements of the City consist of the statement
of net assets and the statement of activities for all of the nonfiduciary
activities of the City and its two component units. The effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these statements. The statements report
separately the governmental activities from the business-type activities.
Governmental  activities are normally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, whereas business-type activities rely on fees and
charges for support. The City as the primary government is shown separately
from its two legally separate component units.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function; program
revenues include (a) charges to customers who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function, and
(b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function. General revenues include taxes
and other items not included in program revenues.

Included in this report are separate financial statements for governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. The City reports its
major individual governmental funds as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement
Presentation

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is
determined by its measurement focus. The government-wide financial
statements, the proprietary fund financial statements, and the fiduciary fund
financial statements are all reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this focus and
basis, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of when the cash is received or expended.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year of their levy; grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue when all the eligibility requirements
of the providers have been met.

All governmental funds are accounted for using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available. The
City of Birmingham considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period; the major sources of
accrued revenue are the various business and ad valorem taxes the City
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collects as well as grant revenues. Expenditures are recorded when the
liability is incurred, consistent with accrual accounting. Debt service
expenditures, claims and judgments, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due.

The City of Birmingham reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund and accounts for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other
funds.

The General Bond Debt Reserve Fund accounts for the receipt of property
taxes earmarked for debt service.

The General Bond Debt Service Fund accounts for the payment of
principal and interest on general obligation debt.

The Birmingham Fund is considered a Special Revenue Fund and is used
to account for the proceeds the City received from the sale of the Industrial
Water Board.

The Capital Improvement Fund accounts for funds from miscellaneous
sources used for various capital improvement projects.

The City reports its only proprietary fund as a major proprietary fund:
The Emergency Management Communications District accounts for the
operation of the Enhanced Universal Emergency Number Service (E911).

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:
The Pension Trust Funds accounts for the activities of the City’s seven
pension plans.

GASB Statement No. 20 requires that each government make elections
concerning proprietary funds. The City elected to apply Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and interpretations issued before or
on November 20, 1989, unless they conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements,

The accompanying financial statements reflect the elimination of interfund
activity with the exception of the charges to the City’s proprietary fund.
These amounts are shown on the statement of net assets as interfund balances.

The operating revenues of the proprietary fund include charges to
customers for the operation of the 911 telephone service. Nonoperating
revenues include investment earnings. The operating expenses of the
proprietary fund are those expenses incurred in the normal operations of
providing the 911 services, as well as depreciation of the capital assets.
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D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity
1. Deposits and Investments —

Cash and cash equivalents includes amounts in demand deposits as well as
short-term investments with a maturity date within three months of the date
acquired by the City. State statutes authorize the City to invest in U. S.
government obligations, U. S. government agency obligations, U. S. corporate
stock, U. S. debt, State of Alabama obligations, county obligations, and other
municipal obligations.

All investments, including those of the City’s component units, are
reported at fair value, market value, or best available estimates. Short-term
investments are reported at cost which approximates market value. Securities
traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported
sales price at cwrrent exchange rates. All investments have established
markets to determine their fair value.

2. Receivables and Payables —

The City shows “due to/from other funds” at the end of the fiscal year to
show the current outstanding balances from lending/borrowing arrangements.

Taxes Receivable — All property taxes levied by the State of Alabama,
Jefferson and Shelby Counties are assessed by the Jefferson and Shelby
Counties Tax assessors and collected by their tax collectors. The property tax
calendars specify the following actions and dates:

Levy (assessment date) September 30

Lien date September 30

Due date October 1

Collection dates October 1 to December 31
Delinquent date January 1

The City of Birmingham receives a 4% sales tax for the sale of tangible goods
within the City limits and a 1% occupational tax on wages of persons
employed within the City limits. Tax collections are remitted to the City on a
monthly basis. All amounts remitted within the bill paying period are
included in revenue; taxes collected within the fiscal year but remitted to the
City after year-end are accrued in both the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The City Council enacted a 1% sales tax increase on
December 4, 2007, for a period of six years to be effective January 1, 2008.
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3. Inventories and Prepaid Items —

Inventories are valued on the average cost basis. Inventory consists of
expendable supplies held in the General Fund for consumption. The cost is
recorded as an expenditure at the time individual items are used (consumption
method). Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods
beyond June 30, 2009, are recorded as prepaid items.

4. Restricted Assets — Certain assets of the Birmingham Airport
Authority (component unit) are restricted by the terms of federal grants and
programs. These particular funds are restricted for designated capital projects
and any debt incurred to finance the construction of those projects.

5. Capital assets — Capital assets include property, buildings, furniture and
other equipment, and infrastructure. Capital assets are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital outlays are recorded as
expenditures of the governmental funds. Capital assets, other than
infrastructure, are defined by the City as items with an estimated useful life of
three years or more and an individual cost in excess of $1,000. Capital assets
are recorded at cost where historical cost is available or at estimated historical
cost if actual cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at their
estimated fair value at time of donation. The costs of normal repairs and
maintenance that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
useful lives are expensed. Upon sale or retirement of capital assets, the cost
and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the respective
accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of operations.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

ASSETS YEARS
Buildings and capital facilities 50

Furniture and other equipment 10-20
Infrastructure 25-50

The City recognizes the intrinsic value of historical works and collections.
As such, the City has adopted a policy that these items will not be considered
capital items and subject to depreciation. This policy covers the historical
works and collections housed at the City’s various museums. Should the sale
of any of these items occur, the City is committed to using the funds generated
from the sale to purchasing other similar collectibles.

6. Compensated absences — City of Birmingham employees earn

vacation leave at graduated rates based on the employee’s length of service
(one day per month of service, initially), and up to 40 days of unused leave

42



IL.

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

may be carried over to the following year. Vacation pay is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide financial statements. The City does not have
a policy for vested sick pay, thus no liability for accumulated unpaid sick
leave is accrued.

7. Long-term obligations — Long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported in the government-wide financia! statements. Bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premiums and
discounts. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.

8. Fund equity — In the fund financial statements, reservations of
governmental funds are used to indicate that a portion of the fund balance is
not appropriated for expenditure or is legally segregated for a specific use.

Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund
balance sheet and the government-wide statement of net assets
(dollars in thousands)

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between Jund
balance - total governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as
reported in the government-wide statement of net assets. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the
funds.” The details of this $603,213 difference are as follows:

Bonds payabie $545,215
Add: Issuance premium (to be amortized as interest expense) 17,707
Less: Discount on issuance of warrants {25)
Less: Deferred charge for issuance costs {to be amortized

over the life of the debf) {26,394)
Accrued interest payable 5,987
Capital leases 27,331
Compensated absences 16,050
Landfill closure liability 7,692
Workmen's compensation claims 2,836
OPEB liability 8.814

3603,213
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B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
and the government-wide statement of activities (dollars in thousands)

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balances includes a reconciliation between ner changes in fund balances-
total governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental activities
as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of
that reconciliation explains that “governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures. In the statement of activities, however, these costs are allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.”

The details of this $28,898 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay 45,097
Depreciation expense (16,199)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total governmental

HI.

funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities $28,898

C. Restatement of beginning net assets (dollars in thousands)

Beginning unrestricted net assets of the governmental activities on the
government-wide financial statements were restated to reflect the negative net
pension obligations for the following pension plans per the actuarial
calculations at 6/30/08 that is shown as an asset:

Retirement & Relief System $ 7,222
Firemen’s & Policemen’s Supplemental Pension 3.570
$10,792

Stewardship, compliance, and accountability

A. Budgetary information

The annual budget for the City of Birmingham’s General Fund is adopted
on a cash basis. Budgets for the Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds
are adopted on an individual project basis. Budgets are not prepared for the
Debt Service Funds because effective budgetary control is alternatively
achieved through general obligation indenture provisions.

On or before May 20, the Mayor submits to the City Council a proposed
General Fund operating budget for the upcoming fiscal year commencing
July 1. The proposed budget includes proposed expenditures and the means
of financing them. Subsequently, a public hearing is held to obtain taxpayer
comments; and prior to July 1, the official budget is enacted through passage
of an ordinance.
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The City’s budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The
individual departments are authorized by the Mayor to make transfers of
appropriations within their departments; however, any revisions that alter the
total expenditures of any fund or transfer between departments must be
approved by City Council. The legal level of budgetary control is the

((department level. This year’s General Fund budget was amended as needed

throughout the year by City Council action provided that adequate funds
were available at the time of the amendments.

Encumbrance accounting is used in governmental funds. Beginning in
fiscal year 2009, all general fund purchase orders lapse at year end and are
reestablished along with their appropriations as needed in the new fiscal year.
All purchase orders in capital projects and special revenue funds do not lapse
and appropriations are reappropriated in the next fiscal year.

Iv. Detailed notes on all funds

A. Deposits and Investments

Deposits — At June 30, 2009, the carrying amount of the City’s demand
deposits, certificates of deposits, and money market investments in all funds
was $262,974,261 and the bank balance was $274,075,310.

Financial institutions utilized as depositories by the City must provide
evidence of its designation by the Alabama State Treasurer as a qualified
public depository under the Security of Alabama Funds Enhancement Act
(SAFE). From time to time, the City may request that the depository provide
evidence of its continuing designation as a qualified public depository. The
enactment of the SAFE program changed the way all Alabama public deposits
are collateralized. Each qualified public depository (QPD) is required to hold
collateral for all its public depositories on a pooled basis in a custody account
established by the State Treasurer as SAFE administrator. In the unlikely
event a public entity should suffer a deposit loss due to QPD insolvency or
default, a claim form would be filed with the State Treasurer who would use
the SAFE pool collateral or other means to reimburse the loss.
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Investments — At June 30, 2009 the City of Birmingham had the following

investments:
Weighted Avg, Maturity
Investment Type Fair Value ears

U.S. Govt. agency obligations $ 164,193,789 8.07
U.S. Treasuries 146,942 277 6.32
U.S. Corporate debt 237,083,444 6.57
U.S. Corporate stock 352.844.557 -
Total fair value $ 901,064,068
Portfolio weighted avg. maturity 6.93

Interest Rate Risk

The City has a formal investment policy for its internally managed funds
which limits the weighted average duration of fixed income investments as a
means of controlling the portfolio’s exposure to undesirable interest rate risk.
The guidelines for these various internally managed fund groups are as

follows:
Fund Group Weighted Avg Duration Limit

Operating & Investment Fund 3 years
Sinking Fund 5 years
1992 Street Warrants 2 years
Investible Grants 1 year
HUD Trust 1 year
Emergency Management Communication

District 1 year
1990 G.O. Bonds 2 years
1990 Storm Sewer Bonds 2 years
1992 G.O. Bond 2 years
1993 G.O. Bond 2 years
Birmingham Fund 7 years

Retirement & Relief System ~ The City’s investment policy for its Retirement
& Relief System does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing
its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Investments Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Changes

The City also invests in mortgage-backed securities, representing U.S.
government agency abligations with a fair value of $38,493,609 and U.S.
corporate debt with a fair value of $1,243,339. Mortgage-backed securities
are based on cash flows from the collection of mortgages. Prepayments arise
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when, for example, mortgage holders redeem their mortgages early. The
investor’s investment is returned early, or in extreme cases, not returned at all.
Mortgage-backed securities may be considered to be investments with terms
that may cause their fair values to be highly sensitive to interest rate changes.

Credit Risk: The City’s Retirement & Relief System’s investment policy
limits investments in all bonds to securities having a Standard & Poors rating
of AAA, AA, A, or BBB, or a Moody’s rating of Aaa, Aa, A, or Baa. The
City’s investments included the following bonds at June 30, 2009:

Description Rating Fair Value
US. Govt Agency Discount
Notes,Bonds AAA $164,193,789
U. 8. Corporate Bonds: A $114,935,724
AA 32,199,721
AAA 21,549,430
BBB 68.398.569 237.083.444

$401,277.233

The City, at this time, does not have a formal credit risk policy for its
internally managed funds.

Securities Lending Transactions — Under the provisions of State statutes, the
City lends securities to broker-dealers and other entities (borrowers) for
collateral that will be returned for the same securities in the future. One of the
City’s custodial banks manage the securities lending program and received
both cash and domestic bonds as collateral. The collateral securities cannot be
pledged nor sold by the City unless the borrower defaults. Collateral
securities are initially pledged at 102 % of the market value of the securities
lent and this collateral is adjusted weekly to maintain the 102% level. The
City’s Pension Plans authorize the lending of domestic bonds and equity
securities. The cash collateral is invested in commingled short-term fixed
income accounts. The City, as a program participant, assumes the risk that

(a) the overnight investment will not equal or exceed the rebate rate, (b) a loss
of principal in the overnight investment, and (c) the collateral will not be
sufficient if called upon to repurchase the lost security. As of June 30, 2009,
the City has approximately $256,182,514 of securities in the securities lending
program and has incurred no loss through its participation in this program and
has no anticipated risk exposure.
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B. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows (in

thousands):

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, nondepreciable:
Land
Construction in progress
Land, infrastructure projects
Total nondepreciable capital assets

Capital assets, depreciable:
Buildings & capital facilities
Furniture & other equipment
Infrastructure

Total depreciable capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings & capital facilities
Furniture & other equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Net depreciable capital assets

Governmental activities, net capital
assets

Business-type activities:

Buildings & other capital facilities

Furniture & other equipment
Total capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings & other capital facilities

Furniture & other equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Business-type activities, net capital
assetls

June 30, June 30,
2008 Increases Decreases 2008
$137,398 137,398

2,038 36,028 1,180 36,886
16,368 279 16,647
155,804 36,307 1,180 180,931
193,779 193,779
145,672 6,396 1,715 150,353
177,173 3,695 180,868
516,624 10,091 1,715 525,000
97,014 3,085 100,099
114,912 6,391 1,605 119,698
106,448 6,723 113,171
318,374 16,199 1,605 332,968
198,250 {6,108) 110 192,032
$354,054 30,199 1,290 382,963
$1,025 1,025
2,237 142 27 2,352
3,262 142 27 3,377
358 20 378
2,003 27 1,876
2,361 20 27 2,355
$901 122 1,022
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Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions (in thousands);

Governmental activities:
Public safety, including depreciation of infrastructure

assets $10,301
Streets and sanitation 1,738
Cuitural and recreation 1,142
General government 3,018
Total depreciation - governmental activities $16,199

Business-type activities:
E-911 operations $20

D. Interfunds receivable, payable, and transfers

The City uses interfund receivables/payables to record interfund
reimbursements that arise when one fund reimburses another fund for costs
incurred on its behalf. The composition of interfund balances as of

June 30, 2009, is as follows (in thousands):

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Capital Improvements General Fund $26,259
Birmingham
General Fund Emergency Mgt.
Communication
District 3,515
Debt Service Fund 6,500

$36,274
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The City uses interfund transfers to record the resources one fund provides
another fund with no expectation of repayment, such as occurs with
companion funds. The composition of interfund transfer balances at

June 30, 2009, is as follows (in thousands):

TRANSFERS IN
TRANSFERS GENERAL FUND DEBT CAPITAL IMP. NON- TOTALS
ouT SERVICE FUND MAIJOR
FUNDS

General Fund $ 22,175 $ 1,080 § 23255
Debt Reserve $ 33,606 33,606
Birmingham
Fund 134 134
Capital Imp.
Fund % 562 1,413 1,975
Non-Major
Funds 1,128 2,163 989 4,280

5 1,690 $ 33,606 $ 24472 $ 3,482 $ 63,250
E. Leases

The City entered into a capital lease in fiscal year 2005 to finance the
acquisition of printing equipment. The lease agreement qualifies as a capital
lease for accounting purposes. The equipment is capitalized at a cost of
$417,000.

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these
minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2009, are as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2010 70,000
2011 70,000
2012 53,000
Total minimum lease payments 193,000
Less amount representing interest {15,000}

Present value of minimum lease payments  $178,000
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The City entered into a capital lease in fiscal year 2006 to finance the
acquisition of a new financial reporting and human resource/payroll computer
system. The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of
these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2009, are as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2010 405,000
2011 270,000
Total minimum lease payments 675,000
Less amount representing interest {_22,000)

Present value of minimum lease payments $653,000

The City entered into a capital lease in fiscal year 2009 to finance the
acquisition of rolling stock. The equipment acquired during fiscal year 2009
is capitalized at a cost of $5.988 million; the remainder of the equipment
acquired during fiscal year 2010 was recorded as work in progress in the
amount of $20.4 million. The future minimum lease obligations and the net
present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2009, are as
follows:
Year ending June 30,

2010 6,976,000
2011 6,976,000
2012 6,977,000
2013 4,181,000
2014 4.181.000
Total minimum lease payments $ 29,291,000
Less amount representing interest {2,791,000)

Present value of minimum lease payments  $26,500,000
F. Long-term debt
General obligation bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition
and/or construction of capital assets. The bonds are direct obligations of the
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City, and the full faith and credit of the City is pledged against the bonds. The
bonds outstanding at June 30, 2009, are as follows (in thousands):

1996; 3.75%-5.25% 430
1997-B, A-E; 4.5%-5.375% 1,495
1998-A, A-B; 3.7%-5.125% 1,300
2001-A; 2.3%-5.75% 4,755
2002-A; 5%-5.5% 16,525
2002-B; 2.25%-5.25% 7,580
2005-A; 3.75%-5.75% 28,230
2006-A; 4.00%-5.00% 83,175
2006-B; 4.00%-5.00% 58,455
2007-A; 4.00%-5.00% 116,100

$318,045

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are
as follows (in thousands):

June 30, Principal interest
2010 19,975 14,809
2011 20,810 13,921
2012 21,185 12,977
2013 22,130 12,022

2014-2018 80,630 44 842
2019-2023 45,110 27,352
2024-2028 40,405 18,132

2028-2033 57,800 8,757

$318,045 $150,812

The warrants outstanding at June 30, 2009, are as follows {(in thousands):

1997, 3.8%-5.0% $ 2,820
1988-A; variable rate 2,365
1998-8; variable rate 24,730
2000-A; 4.3%-5.5% 45,760
2001-B; 5%-5.5% 6,780
2001-C; 4%-5.75% 20,800
2003-A; 1.7%-5.25% 15,375
2003-B; 1.2%-5% 24,000
2004-A; variable rate 20,370
2004-B; 2.3%-4% 6,705
20086-C; 4%-5% 24,740
2007-B; 4%-5% 25,360

$213,805

Revenue Warrants:
2000 Tax Increment Financing; var. rate $ 7,365
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the City’s general obligation
and revenue warrants are as follows (in thousands):

June 30 Principal Interest
2010 10,830 10,345
2011 11,305 9,876
2012 12,345 8,376
2013 12,875 8,846

2014-2018 76,495 33,972
2019-2023 41,470 18,507
2024-2028 39,655 8,232
2029-2033 14,830 1,689

$218,805 $100,843

Total outstanding bonds and warrants pavable (in thousands):

Bonds payable $318,045
Warrants payable 219,805
Revenue warrants 7,365

545,215
Less current maturities (30,805)

Unamortized premium & discount 17,682

Total bonds and warrants payable  $532,092

Changes in long-term liabilities (in thousands):
Governmental activities:

Due
Balance Balance Within
July 1, June 30, One
2008 Additions Reductions 2009 Year
Bonds and warrants payable
(net of premium and discounts)  $593,557 30,660 562,897 30,805
Capital leases 1,266 26,500 435 27,331 6,387
Worker's compensation claims 2,836 2,836 0
Compensated absences 14,896 2,154 1,000 16,050 718
Closure and postclosure costs 7,614 78 7,692 o
OPESB liability 6,814 6,814 0
$626,983 $28,732 $ 32,085 $623,620 537,810
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The City’s general fund is typically used to liquidate long-term liabilities with
the exception of the debt which is paid from the City’s debt service fund.

G. Risk Management

The City of Birmingham is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts,
theft, errors and omissions, job-related illnesses and injuries, and natural
disasters. Risk management is the process of managing the City’s activities to
minimize the adverse effects of certain types of losses and to obtain finances
to provide for or restore the economic damages of those losses. The City
finances its risk through self-insurance (risk retention) and through the
purchase of insurance with a commercial insurance carrier (risk transfer),

In fiscal year 2008, the Alabama Supreme Court ruled that the City of
Birmingham was not exempt from the State of Alabama’s worker
compensation rules. The City has not decided whether it will appeal this
ruling or not at this time. It is considering a rewrite of the pension laws of the
State of Alabama that cover the City’s pension plans to better reflect the
City’s overall liability. The City had a professional actuarial estimate made of
its liability at June 30,2008, which was calculated to be $2,836,164 which has
been accrued on the government-wide financial statements. The City elected
to have this actuarial evaluation done biennially. The changes to the liability
for workers compensation claims is shown below:

Current
Year

Claims and
Beginning Changes in Claim Ending
June 30 Liability Estimates Payments Liabitity
2009 $2,836 0 0 $2,836
2008 $7,200 {4,364) 0 $2,836
2007 $7,200 0 0 $7,200
2006 $7,200 0 0 $7,200
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The City covers all legal claims expenditures out of its General Fund
resources. Claims expenditures and liabilities are reported when it is probable
that a loss has occurred, and the amount of that loss can be reasonably
estimated. At June 30, 2009, the amount of these liabilities totaled $1.948
million and is considered a current lability. The liability is the City’s best
estimate based on available information. Changes in the General Fund’s
claims liability amount in the last three fiscal years are as follows (in
thousands):

Current
Year
Claims and

Beginning Changes in Claim Ending

June 30 Liability Estimates Payments Liability
2008 $3,087 449 1,588 $1,948
2008 $3,235 844 1,082 $3,087
2007 $2,725 2,026 1,516 $3,235

H. Commitments and Contingencies

The City of Birmingham is required by Act 232 of the 1977 Alabama
Legislature to pay the Birmingham Jefferson County Transit Authority an
amount equal to 10% of the ad valorem taxes collected for the County on
property located within the municipality. Such amount was approximately
$3,000,000 for the 2009 fiscal year.

The City entered into an agreement with Jefferson County and the
Birmingham-Jefferson County Civic Center Authority (BICCA) for the
improvement of the Civic Center facilities. Under the agreement, both the
City and the County agreed to appropriate, pledge, and pay to the BJCCA an
annual amount of tax revenue proceeds for the retirement of debt and for
financing Civic Center improvements. The City is committed to expend
$3,000,000 of tax revenue for twenty years beginning in 1992.

The City of Birmingham, along with nine other cities and four counties
participates in the East Central Alabama Industrial Development Authority.
As a participant, the City entered into funding agreements whereby the City
agreed to make annual payments on February 1 of each year beginning 2001
and ending 2015 of approximately $195,000, to pay principal and interest on
$2,000,000 of bonds issued by the Fast Central Alabama Industrial
Development Authority.
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The City of Birmingham entered into an agreement with Wal-Mart Real
Estate Trust in May 2002. Wal-Mart agreed to purchase and construct within
the City limits two retail sales components — one being a Wal-Mart
Supercenter and the other a retail gasoline station. The City, in return, agreed
to rebate the City’s portion of sales taxes collected at the new location up to
$10,000,000. The two new locations began operations in December 2003; the
City’s obligation to Wal-Mart ended in fiscal year 2009 with a total of
$10,000,000 rebated.

In August 2002, the City entered into funding agreements with the Greater
Birmingham Convention & Visitors Bureau (the Bureau) and with the
Birmingham Jefferson Civic Center Authority (BICCA). The purpose of the
agreements is to encourage and promote tourism and convention business
within the city. On July 30, 2002, the City Council levied and imposed a
privilege tax on every person, firm, or corporation engaged in the business of
renting or furnishing any type accommodations to people in hotels, motels,
inns, cabins, or any other type lodging. The tax is 3% of the charges of the
lodging accommodations. The City agreed to rebate one-third of the taxes
collected to the Bureau and two-thirds to the BICCA. The terms of the
agreements are from July 1, 2002, through June 30, 2007, with options for
annual renewals. As of June 30, 2009, the City has collected life-to-date
approximately $12,426,364 in lodging tax revenues and has remitted
approximately $4,071,460 to the Bureau and approximately $8,354,904 to the
BICCA.

In May 2006, the City and Wal Mart Stores East, LP ( a subsidiary of Wal-
Mart Stores, Inc.) entered into a redevelopment agreement for property
located at the former Eastwood Mall shopping center. Wal Mart Stores
agreed to construct a Wal-Mart Supercenter on approximately 23 acres of the
site and additional retail stores on approximately 27 acres. As an inducement
to develop this vacant property and create jobs, the City contributed $11
million to the project. Wal Mart Stores agreed that if the revenue generated
did not equal or exceed the City’s assumed debt service that they would be
obligated to pay any difference. The stores opened in the fall of 2007, and
revenues generated have exceeded the City’s debt service associated with this
project.

In May 2008, the City entered into a project agreement with The Childrens
Hospital of Alabama (TCHA) whereby TCHA will undertake an expansion
project which will generate construction payroll revenue for the City as well
as 400 new TCHA jobs upon completion. As an inducement for TCHA to
expand its facilities and create new jobs, the City will rebate to them newly
created occupational tax revenues, occupational taxes attributable to the
construction period, and one-half of the costs of all City construction permits.
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The term of the agreement is the earlier of twenty years or the date when
refunds made to TCHA total $20,000,000.

I. Closure and post closure cost

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover
on its landfill sites when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain
maintenance and monitoring functions at the sites for thirty years after
closure. Although closure and postclosure costs will be paid only near or after
the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the City reports a portion of
the estimated closure and postclosure cost liability as a long-term liability.
The liability is increased or decreased each period based on landfill capacity
used as of each balance sheet date.

The approximate $7 million reported as closure and postclosure care liability
at June 30, 2009, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on
the use of approximately 80 percent of the estimated capacity of the landfill.
These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and
postclosure care in 2009. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes
in technology, and/or changes in regulations. Officials estimate the landflls’
remaining lives to be approximately three years.

J. Pension Funds

The City of Birmingham maintains seven single employer defined benefit
pension plans covering substantially all employees. These plans consist of the
Retirement and Relief System, Firemen’s and Policemen’s Supplemental
Pension System, Firemen’s Pension and Relief System, Policemen’s Pension
and Relief System, Limited Firemen’s Retirement and Relief, Limited
Policemen’s Retirement and Relief, and the Unclassified Employees Pension
and Relief System. Each of the seven plans was established by state law and
is administered by a separate board of managers.

Plan Descriptions
The funding methods and determination of benefits payable were established

by the legislative acts creating such plans and provide that the pension plans’
funds are to be accumulated from employee contributions, employer
contributions, and income from the investment of accumulated funds, The
cost of administering the plans is funded by the City. The City acts as the
trustee for six of these plans. Separate financial statements are presented in
this report for the pension funds.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The activities and the financial statements of the pension plans are accounted
for on the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are
recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. The City’s
contributions are recognized when due and a formal commitment to provide
the contributions has been made. Benefits and refunds are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Each pension
plan’s cash assets are invested in equity and fixed-income securities. Al plan
assets are reported at fair value. Investments are traded on the national
exchange

Plan descriptions and disclosures as of the last actuarial study of June 30,
2008, for each pension plan follow.

City of Birmingham Retirement and Relief System — This system covers all
civit service employees, elected officials, and appointed employees.
Membership is mandatory for covered employees and is effective upon
employment.  Appointed and elected employees have the option of
participating in this plan or in an alternative retirement plan. The City and
employees each contribute one-half of the required contribution payable as a
percent of compensation for the year, exclusive of overtime and subject to
statutory limits. The plan is funded by contributions from employees, the
City, and income from the investment of accumulated funds,

Schedule of Employer Contributions:

Plan Year Ended Annual Required Actual Percentage
June 30, Contributions Contributions Contributed
2001 $4,347,350 $10,151,206 233.5%
2002 8,580,579 10,537,461 122.8%
2003 0,756,787 10,697,621 109.6%
2004 11,290,871 11,347,715 100.5%
2005 12,875,198 10,881,632 84.5%
2006 13,742,543 11,398,732 82.9%
2007 14,173,353 12,006,508 84.7%
2008 14,818,900 12,061,584 81.4%
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Supplementary Information for Retirement & Relief System:

Actuarlal Valuation:
Frequency
Latest Date
Basis for Centributions
Cost Method

Amortization:

Method
Open/Closed

Equivalent Single Period Remaining

Asset Vaiuation Meathod

Investment Earnings
Salary Increase:

infiation

Merit, Longevity, etc.
Administrative Expense

Assumptions:

Plan Membership:

Annual
7/1/2008
71172008

Entry Age Normal

tevel Dollar
Open/Rolling 30 years

30
Market value of assets less unrecognized
returns in each of the Jast five years.
Unrecognized return Is equal to the
difference between the actual market return
and the expected return on the actuarial
vaiue, and is recognized over a five-year
period, further adjusted, if necessary, to be
within 20% of the market value.

7.00

3.5%
Varies from .00% to 6%
Changes from $150,000 to $180,000

Retired participants and beneficiaries recelving benefits 2,464
Terminated participants entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits 205
Active participants 3,782
Total membership 6,451
Schedule of Funding Progress:
Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Valuation  Valuation {AAL)- {Overfunded) Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assets Entry Age AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroki
71112001 773,453,461 727,360,824 {46,082627) 106.34% 149,422,297 0.00%
7/1/2002 778,605,246 758,085,228 {20,520,018) 102.71% 151,180,057 -0.00%
7/1/2003 785,646,456 796,083,861 10,437,406 9B.69% 152,242 441 B.86%
7M/2004 801,612,265 838,485,603 36,873,337 95.60% 158,062,119 23.33%
7/1/2005 819,166,738 875,792,038 56,625,302 93.53% 158,898,488 35.64%
77142006 898,671,013 946,684 547 47,913,534 94.94% 162,849,137 29.42%
7/1/2007 935,821,004 992,864,448 57,043,354 94.25% 167,807,596 33.99%
7M1/2008 953,079,670 1,050,785,799 97,706,129 90.70% 174,113,556 56.12%
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Retirement and Relief System

Development of the Net Pension Oktigation and the Annual Pension Cost

Plan Year
Ended Employer Annual Empioyer Amount Interest on ARC Amaortization Pension Change in NPO
June 30 Required Contribution Contributed NPO @ 7%  Adjustment Factor Cost NPO Balance
2002 £8,580,579 $10,537,461 ($1,236,872) ($1,923,3886) 8.5743 $9,267,093 ($1,270,368) ($17,761,99
2003 9,756,787 10,697,621 (1,332,450)  (2,022,300) 8.7831 10,446,937 (250,684) (18,012,685
2004 11,290,871 11,347,715 (1,350,951) (2,089,340} 8.6212 12,029,259 681,544 {(17,331,13
2005 12,875,198 10,881,632 (1,299,835}  (2,035,605) 8.514 13,610,968 2,729,336 (14,601,80:
2006 13,742,543 11,398,732 {1,085,135) {1,150,085) 12.6962 13,797,503 2,398,771 (12,203,031
2007 14,173,353 12,006,508 (915,227) (919,064) 13.2777 14,177,190 2,170,682 (10,032,34¢
2008 14,818,900 12,061,584 (702,264) (755,580} 13.2777 14,872,216 2,810,632 (7,224,717
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City of Birmingham Firemen's and Policemen's Supplemental Pension
System- This system covers sworn firemen and policemen and provides
retirement benefits for twenty or twenty-five years of service. Membership is
mandatory for such personnel and is effective upon employment. Employees
hired prior to May 2, 1978, contribute 3.3% of payroll, exclusive of overtime;
those hired on or subsequent to May 2, 1978, contribute 5.22% and the City
matches these amounts. The plan is funded by contributions from employees,
the City, and income from the investment of accumuiated funds.

Schedule of Employer Contributions:

Plan Year Ended Annual Required Actual Percentage
June 30, Contributions Contributions Contributed

2002 $2,756,102 $2,936,000 106.5%

2003 2,722,342 3,039,000 111.6%

2004 2,570,134 3,260,000 126.8%

2005 2,647,128 3,244,000 122.5%

2006 2,630,520 3,463,000 131.6%

2007 2,888,088 3,599,000 124.6%

2008 3,072,635 3,405,000 110.8%

Schedule of Funding Progress:

Actuarial
Accrued UAALas a
Actuarial  Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Valuation {AAL)- {Overfunded) Funded Covered of Covered

Date of Assets  Entry Age AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

7/1/2002 29,149,739 52,276,639 23,126,630 55.76% 62,814,588 36.82%
TM/2003 31,645,591 53,770,787 22,125,196 58.85% 61,434,680 36.01%
7M1/2004 33,867,873 56,331,392 22,463,519 60.12% 64,5498 815 34.80%
7M1/2005 36,527,498 57,546,009 21,018,601 63.48% 65,474,617 32.10%
7/1/2006 38,069,000 62,588,559 24,519,559 60.82% 67,050,579 36.57%
7M/2007 40,990,266 68,629,929 27,639,663 58.73% 867,702,728 40.83%
7/1/2008 42,802,299 90,440,029 47,646,730 47.32% 71,066,835 67.04%
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Supplementary Information for Firemen's & Policemen’s Supplemental

Pension Plan:

Actuarial Valuation;
Frequency
Latest Date
Basis for Contributions
Cost Method

Amortization:

Method
Open/Closed
Equivalent Single Period Remaining

Asset Valuation Method

Assumptions:

lnvestment Earnings
Salary Increase:

Inflation

Merit, Longevity, etc.

Plan Membership:

Retired participanits and beneficiaries receiving benefits
Active padicipants
Total membership

62

Annual
7/1/2008
7/1/2008

Entry Age Nommal

Level Dollar
Open/Rolling 30 years
30
Market value of assets less unrecognized
returns in each of the last five years.
Unrecegnized return is equal to the
difference between the actual market return
and the expected return on the actuarial
value, and is recognized over a five-year
period, further adjusted, if necessary, to be
within 20% of the market vaiue.

7.00

3.5%
Varies from .00% to 6%

274
1,351
1,625
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Firemen's and Policemen's Supplemental Pension Plan

Development of the Net Pension Obligation and the Annual Pension Cost

Plan Year
Ended Employer Annual Employer Amount Interest on ARC Amartization Pension Change in NPO

June 30 Reguired Contribution Contributed NPO @ 7%  Adjustment Factor Cost NPO Balance
2002 $2,756,102 $2,936,000 $0 $0 9.3741 $2,756,102 ($179,898}  ($179,89
2003 2,722,342 3,035,000 {13,482) (18,109) 9.9343 2,726,959 (312,041) (491,93¢
2004 2,570,134 3,260,000 {36,895) {50,584) 97252 2,583,823  (676,177) (1,168,11¢
2005 2,647,128 3,244,000 {87,609) {120,538) 9.6908 2,680,057 (663,943) {1,732,05¢
2006 2,630,520 3,463,000 (125,904) (136,424) 12.6962 2,637,040 (825,960} (2,558,020
2007 2,888,088 3,599,000 (179,061} (192,656) 13.2777 2,901,683 (697,317} (3,255,337
2008 3,072,635 3,405,000 (227,874) {245,174) 13.2777 3,089,935  {315,065) (3,570,402
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City of Birmingham Unclassified Employees Pension and Relief System — This
system covers laborers not hired under civil service. Employees contribute
$10.00 bi-weekly. The City is required by City ordinance to contribute a sum,
computed as a percentage of payroll, to fund the annual cost of the unfunded
liability over thirty years. The membership of this plan is closed and is funded
by City contributions approximately equal to current benefit payments.

Actuarial
Accrued
Actuarial  Actuarial  Liability

Valuation Valuation (AAL)-
Entry

UAAL as a
Unfunded Percentage
(Overfunded) Funded Covered of Covered

Date of Assets Age AAL {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
7H/2007 1,864,000 1,265,192 (598,808) 147.33% N/A N/A
7/1/2008 1,591,000 1,136,772 (454,228) 139.96% N/A N/A

Supplementary information for the Unclassified Employees Pension & Relief

Fund:

Actuarial Valuation:
Frequency
Latest Date
Basis for Contributions

Cost Method
Asset Valuation Method

Assumptions:
tnvestment Earnings
Salary Increase
Plan Membership:
Retired participants and beneficiaries receiving benefits
Active participants
Total membership

Annual
71142008
7/1/2008

Aggregate Cost Methed
Market Value

7.00
N/A

30

35
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Firemen’s Pension and Relief Fund — This system covers firemen employed
prior to September 1939. All participants are currently retired and receiving
benefits. Funding is provided by a tax of 1 %% of premiums on fire insurance
on property in Birmingham and by City contributions. Retired members
include 3 beneficiaries.

Schedule of Employer Contributions:

Year Ended June 30, Annual Required Contributions Percentage
Contributed
2002 $0 100%
2003 0 100%
2004 0 100%
2005 0 100%
2006 0 100%
2007 0 100%
2008 0 160%

Analysis of Funding Progress:
This plan is frozen and has sufficient assets to meet its benefit obligations.

Supplementary information for Firemen's Pension & Relief:

Actuarial Valuation:

Frequancy Annual
Latest Date 7112008
Basis for Contributions 71142008

Cost Method Funded Frozen Plan

Assumptions:

Investment Earnings 7%
Mortality Tahle 1894 Group Annuity Morality Table
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Policemen’s Pension and Relief Fund — This system covers policemen
employed prior to September 1939. There are 4 beneficiaries currently in the

plan.

Schedule of Employer Contributions:

Year Ended June 30, Annual Required Contributions Percentage
Contributed

2002 566,425 100%

2003 57,585 100%

2004 51,617 100%

2005 42,714 100%

2006 31,054 100%

2007 23,488 100%

2008 18,807 100%

Analysis of Funding Progress:
This plan is frozen and has sufficient assets to meet its benefit obligations.

Supplementary information for Policemen’s Pension & Relief:

Actuarial Valuation:

Frequency Annual

Latest Date 71172008

Basis for Contributions B771/2007

Cost Method Funded Frozen Plan
Assumptions:

Investment Earnings 7%

Mortality Table 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table
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Limited Firemen’s Retirement and Relief System: — This system covers
certain designated firemen formerly members of the Firemen’s Pension and
Relief Fund. Current membership includes 3 beneficiaries.

Schedule of Employer Contributions:

Year Ended June 30, Annual Required Contributions Percentage
Contributed

2002 569,862 100%

2003 51,953 100%

2004 34,926 100%

2005 34,500 100%

2006 28,025 100%

2007 29,927 100%

2008 19,454 100%

Analysis of Funding Progress:
This plan is frozen; the City pays benefits as they come due.

Supplementary information for Limited Firemen'’s Pension & Relief:

Actuarial Valuation:

Frequency Annual

Latest Date 7/1/2008

Basis for Cantributions . 7/1/2008

Cost Method Frozen Plan
Assumptions:

Invastment Earnings 7%

Monrality Table 1884 Group Annuity Mortality Table
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Limited Policemen’s Retirement and Relief System — This system covers
certain designated policemen formerly members of the Policemen’s Pension

and Relief Fund. Current membership includes 3 beneficiaries.

Schedule of Employer Contributions:

Year Ended June 30, Annual Required Contributions Percentage
Contributed

2002 $81,903 100%

2003 64,832 100%

2004 61,913 100%

2005 48,701 100%

2006 29,323 100%

2007 19,841 100%

2008 19,454 100%

Analysis of Funding Progress:
This plan is frozen; the City pays benefits as they come due.

Supplementary information:

Actuarial Valuation:

Frequency Annual
Latest Date 7/1/2008
Basis for Contributions 7{1/2008
Cost Method Frozen Plan

Assumptions:

Investment Earnings 7%
Mortality Table 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table

Post-Retirement Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described above, the City provides post-
retirement health care benefits to retired employees who are eligible for
pension benefits. The plan requires retirees to reduce their life insurance
coverage, which retirees are required to pay in its entirety, and in exchange,
the City will subsidize a portion of the retirees’ health insurance premiums.
The amount of the subsidy is based on the type of health insurance coverage
chosen by retirees and the percentage of the retirees’ life insurance reduction.

The City’s subsidy for each covered retired employee ranges from $30 to
$121 per month, and total insurance premiums range from $12 to $34 per
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CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

month for dental insurance, and $116 to $953 for medical insurance.
Expenditures for post-retirement health care insurance costs are made and
recognized monthly in the City’s financial statements.

The City had an actuarial study made to determine the OPEB liability. The
actuarial results are on the following page. The City paid approximately $3.5
million in medical claims and medical premiums for retirees which was
deducted from the actuarially determined liability. The remainder $6.8
million was accrued in the government-wide financial statements.

V. Subsequent Events

In July 2009, the City issued the General Obligation Refunding Warrants,
Series 2009-A in the amount of $19,960,000. The warrants were used to
current refund the 2004-A General Obligation Capital Improvement Warrants
(Series 2004-A Warrants). The outstanding amount of the Series 2004-A
Warrants at the time of the refunding was $19,945,625. The Series 2009-A
Refunding Warrants are fixed rate warrants with a final maturity date of June
1, 2026.

In November 2009, the City entered into private financing arrangements to
issue $21 million of revenue warrants. The warrants will be used to current
refund the Tax Increment Financing Revenue Warrants-Series 2000, to pay
project costs occurring in the Tax Increment Financing District, and to pay
costs of issuance. The warrants are limited obligations of the City of
Birmingham payable solely out of incremental ad valorem taxes from the Tax
Increment Financing District. The revenue warrants are fixed rate warrants
with a final maturity date of June 30, 2021.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Other operating revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current Expenditures

Public safety
Police
Fire
Planning,Engineering & Permits
Traffic Engineering
Municipal Court
Parole Office

Street and sanitation
Public Works

Cuitural & recreational
Park & Recreation
Library
Arlington Historical Home
Boutwell Auditorium
Museum of Art
Sloss Furnace
Southern Museum of Flight
State Fairgrounds

General government
Finance
Equipment Management
Information Management Services
City Clerk
Community Development
Council Office
Legal
Mayor's Office
Personnel
Nondepartmental

City of Birmingham, Alabama
General Fund

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
{in thousands)
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QOver (Under)
Budget Actual Budget
263,651 245,349 (18,301}
91,724 87,525 {4,199)
16,082 16,227 145
12,554 13,995 1,441
5,283 6,322 1,039
4,012 2,389 {1,623)
6,296 6,742 446
309,602 378,549 {21,053)
82,807 80,914 (1,893)
62,868 62,002 (776)
14,830 14,487 (343)
9,642 9,969 326
4,817 4,638 (179)
735 737 2
53,047 52,083 (964)
11,307 10,353 {954)
16,369 16,453 84
632 589 (43)
1,246 1,284 38
3,726 3,751 26
868 772 {95)
622 689 67
702 759 58
9,847 9,304 (542)
5,396 5,321 {75)
6,212 6,025 (187)
1,150 951 {(199)
L B25 (63)
3,566 2,664 (902)
4,022 3,654 {368)
6,174 6,066 (108)
2,918 2,669 (250)
56,801 £3,786 (3,015)



City of Birmingham, Alabama
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
{in thousands)

Qver (Undern)
Budget Actual Budget
Debt Service

Principal 3,235 5,400 2,165
Interest and fees 4,581 5,275 693
Capital outiays 30,982 44,672 13,6990
Total Expenditures 399,992 406,185 6,183
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures: {390) {27,636) {27,236)

Other financing sources (uses)

Proceeds from capital lease 26,500
Transfers in 1,689
Transfers out {23,255)
Total Other financing sources {(uses) 4,935
Net Change in Fund Balances {390) (22,701}
Fund Balances - Beginning 117,482 117,482
Fund Balances - Ending 117,092 94,781
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds
Neighborhood _Allgeation Fund accounts for funds allocated for the 99

neighborhoods within the City of Birmingham as well as other miscellaneous special
revenue allocations.

Miscellaneous Grant Fund accounts for funds arising from miscellaneous grants.
Although the funds are consclidated, each grant is accounted for individually.

Technology Fund accounts for a portion of the fees collected by Municipal Court
that have been specifically earmarked for technological needs of the Court.

Correction Fund accounts for a portion of the fees collected by Municipal Court
that have been specifically earmarked for the Court and the Police Department’s
Corrections Division.

Birmingham Water Works Proceeds accounts for funds received by the City from
the transfer of the assets of the Water Works and Sewer Board of the City of
Birmingham.

HUD Block Grant accounts for those funds received and used for Community
Urban Development Block Grants.

Home Investment Trust Fund accounts for funds received from Housing and Urban
Development to provide loans for low to moderate income housing.

Debt Service Funds

Tax Increment Financing accounts for ad valorem taxes received from Jefferson
County specifically for the repayment of the debt for the Tax Increment Financing
Warrants. The fund also accounts for the uses of the warrant proceeds.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Public Improvement Fund accounts for construction of Public Improvements which

are to be paid wholly or in part from assessments levied against the property
benefited by the improvements.

Other capital project funds are used to account for the proceeds and uses of specific
general obligation bonds and warrants.
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Assels
Cash and investments
Cash with fiscal agent
Receivables:
Accrued interest
Accrued taxes
Accounts (net of uncollectibles)
Notes {net of uncoliectibles}
Loans
Due from cther governments
Special assessments
Other
Total Assels

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts and vouchers payable
Coniracts payable-retainage

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes payable

BDue to other funds

Deferred revenue

Olher liabilities
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved for debt service
Reserved for future projects
Unrestricted
Total Fund Batances
Totat Liabilities and Fund Balances

Clty of Birmingham, Alabama
Combined Balance Sheets
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2009
{in thousands)

Special Debt Capilal Total Nonmajor

Revenue Funds Service Funds Projects Funds Governmental Funds
21,589 1,088 77112 99,791
2,217 140 2,357

59 16 75

138 138

a5 95

268 288
3,338 3.33%
801 91
10,169 10,169

53 53
26,325 3,306 87,573 117,206
1,612 329 1,004 3.033
27 143 483 623

187 187

2 6,500 6,502
2,872 10,169 13,142
64 a4
4,854 6,972 11,716 23,551
1)

23,308 75,860 99,168
{1,847} (3.666) {5.513)
21,461 (3.666) 75,860 93,655
25,325 3,306 87,575 117,208
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City of Birmingham, Alabama

Combined Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

{in thousands)

Special Debt Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Funds Serviee Funds Frojects Funds Governmental Funds
Revenues
Taxes 1,703 1,703
Intergovernmental 18,161 18,161
Charges for services 74 74
Fines and forfeitures 1,622 1,622
Investment income 258 20 1,081 1,359
Other aperating revenues 657 172 829
Total Revenues 20,772 1,723 1,253 23,748
Expenditures
Current Expenditures
Public safety 2,429 1,822 4,351
Street and sanitation 13z 199 N
Cultural & recreational 131 208 338
General government 15,968 50 1,245 17,263
Total current expenditures 18,660 50 3,574 22,284
Debt Service
Interest and fees 4885 486
Capital outlays 7,841 5,872 23,359 37,172
Total expenditures 26,601 5,408 26,933 59,942
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures - (5,829) (4,685) (25,681) (36,194)
Other financing sources (Uses):
Transfers in 3,482 3,482
Transfers out (2,494) (1,786) (4.280)
Total other financing sSources (uses) 988 {1,786) (798)
Net Change in Fund Balances (4.842) (6.471) (25,681) (36,892)
Fund Balances - Beginning 26,303 2,808 101,541 130,647
Fund Balances - Ending 21,461 (3,668) 75,860 93,655
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Statistical Section

This portion of the City of Birmingham’s comprehensive financial annual report
presents additional information to be used in conjunction with the preceding
statements to gauge the City’s overall financial well being.

Financial Trends
These schedules present information on how the City’s financial performance has
changed over the past five fiscal years.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules present information on the collection of the City’s most significant
local revenue source, the sales and use tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information on the City’s outstanding debt and its ability to
issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules present indicators of the City’s demographic and economic
environment.

Operating Information
These schedules present data regarding the City’s services and infrastructure.
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Expenses:

Govarnmental activities:

General government

Public safety

Streets & sanitation

Culture & recreation

Interest on long-term debt

Total governmentai activities expenses

Business-type activities:
E-911 Services

Total primary government expenses

Program Revenues:
Governmental actlvities:
Charges for services
General government:
Business licenses & permits
Non-business licenses & permits
Public safety
Streets & sanitation
Culture & racreation
Operating grants and contributions
Total governmental activities program revenues

Business-type activities:
E-911 Services

Total primary government program revenues
Net (Expense)/Revenue

Governmental activities
Business-type activities

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets:

Governmental activitles:
Taxes:
Sales and use taxes
Occupational taxes
Property taxes
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Investment earnings
Other
Total gavernmental activities

Business-fype activities:
Investment earriings

Total primary government

Change (decrease) in Net Assets:
Goveramental activities
Business-type activitias

Totai primary government

Source:City Finance Department Data

City of Birmingham, Alabama

Changes in Net Assets
Last Eight Fiscal Years
{in thousands)

Table A-2
(1 of 2}
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2002 2003 2004 2005
$73,183 $91,774 $84 411 $94,652
175,491 140,228 138,260 160,087

70,472 93,381 97,657 80,229
40,012 41,657 39,359 39,047
10,633 15,115 13,179 13,000
369,791 382,150 372,866 387,035
3,196 3,168 3,471 3,258
$372,987 $385,318 $376,337 $390,293
43,164 45,811 48,687 50,334
3,841 3,947 4,089 5,288
22,130 18,821 18,736 18,328
1,683 1,275 1,438 1,533
1,589 1,316 1,185 999
20,684 13,385 18,051 13,797
93,091 85,555 92,186 90,279
3,102 3,126 3,058 2,954
596,193 $88,681 $95,254 $93,233
{$278,700) ($296,595) {$280,670) {$296,756)
(94) {42) (413) {304)
(3276,794) ($296,637) {$281,083) {$297,060)
$103,824 $101,434 $100,608 $107,271
63,051 64,522 65,537 69,346
42,058 42,858 48,596 50,618
18,101 18,249 18,434 21,618
17,647 18,023 9,304 12,562
25,817 18,006 6,563 7,682
270,508 263,002 249,042 269,097
44 29 22 34
$270,552 $263,121 $249,064 $269,131
(56,192) {$33,503) ($31,628) ($27,659)
{50) {13) {(381) (270}
{$6,242) {$33,576) {$32,019) {$27,929)
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City of Birmingham, Alabama
Changes In Net Assets
Last Eight Fiscal Years

{(in thousands)

Expenses;
Governmental activities:

General government

Public safety

Streets & sanitation

Culture & recreation

Interest on long-term deht

Total governmentat activities expenses

Business-type activities:
E-911 Services

Total primary government expenses

Program Revenues:
Governmental actlvities:
Charges for services
General government;
Business licenses & permits
Non-business licenses & permits
Public safety
Streats & sanitation
Culture & recreation
Operating grants and contributions
Total governmental activities program revenues

Business-type activities:
E-211 Services

Total primary government program revenues
Net (Expense)/Revenue

Governmentaf activities
Buslness-type activities

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets:

Governmental activities:
Taxes:
Sales and use taxas
Occupational taxes
Property taxes
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Investment earnings
Other
Total governmental activities

Businass-type activitios:
Investment sarnings

Total primary government
Change (decrease} In Net Assets:
Governmental activities

Business-type activities
Total primary governmant

Source:City Finance Department Data

87-A

Table A-2
(2 of 2)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2008 2007 2008 2009

$122,163 $106,000 $ 88,799 $ 121,554
181,014 163,704 163,149 169,083
€8,749 95,381 93,821 121,848
38,547 42222 43,895 36,132
22,414 23,989 27,643 25,381
432,887 431,296 417,307 473,998
3,157 3,186 3,935 4,044
$436,044 $434,492 $421,242 $478,042
54,951 60,002 85,721 91,493
5,612 5,347 5,342 4,506
17,244 17,327 14,739 17,502
1,706 1,971 1,450 1,577
a77 1,252 1,275 1,341
8,221 18,606 19,830 15,094
88,712 104,505 128,357 131,513
2,898 3,156 3,308 3,447
$31,710 $107,661 $131,665 $134,960
($344,175) {$326,791) ($288,950) {5342,485)
{159) (40) {627) (587)
(5344,334) {$325,831) {5289,577) ($343,082)
$105,085 $109,665 $129,732 $131,904
72,297 75,269 76,918 76,325
52,669 54,920 62,698 61,663
19,585 23,853 18,878 26,060
10,834 21,168 10,684 {4,201)
10,189 12,736 8,118 8,407
274,659 287,611 308,123 300,158
39 102 68 15
$274,698 $287,713 $308,191 $300,173
{$69,516) ($29,180) 519,172 {342,327)
{120} 62 (559) {582)
($69,636) (§29,118) $18,614 ($42,909)
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City of Birmingham, Alabama
Property Taxes Levied and Collected for
Birmingham, Jefferson and Shelby Counties

Last Ten Fiscal Years

City of Birmingham

Table C-7

Beginning Assessed Total Taxes Uncoilectible at Sale Date

October 1 Valuation Levied Amount Parcentage
1899 2,118,433,717 51,753,527 203,417 0.3%%
2000 1,835,101,332 47,038,556 234,328 0.50%
2001 1,842,139,212 50,637,230 365,764 0.72%
2002 1,928,418,765 52,780,331 679,324 1.28%
2003 2,170,886,167 59,048,850 692,802 1.17%
2004 2,265,446,818 61,440,447 362,036 0.59%
2005 2,301,000,783 62,890,413 504,279 0.80%
2006 2,498,447,476 67,656,797 532,474 0.79%
2007 2,528,862,000 71,922,590 986,925 1.37%
2008 2,677,578,333 76,769,099 1,547,294 2.01%

Jefferson County

Beginning Assessed Total Taxes Uncollectible at Sale Date

October 1 Valuation Levied Amount Percentage
1999 5,684,682,452 345,807,893 633,256 0.18%
2000 5,523,608,900 340,759,254 897,388 0.26%
2001 §,596,211,994 351,730,297 1,169,066 0.33%
2002 5,771,213,801 365,507,555 2,879,114 0.79%
2003 6,506,073,106 420,329,739 2,610,384 0.62%
2004 6,355,450,405 445,840,218 1,523,732 0.34%
2005 6,692,146,321 469,456,560 2,180,748 0.46%
2006 7,236,058,226 509,403,085 2,293,305 0.45%
2007 7,744,422,000 545,472,944 4,083,319 0.75%
2008 B,238,988,223 580,123,421 8,107,002 1.56%

Shelby County

Beginning Assessed Total Taxes Uncollectibie at Sale Data

October 1 Valuation Levied Amount Percentage
1999 1,435,400,100 71,537,000 2,201,200 3.08%
2000 1,478,400,100 77,733,000 194,700 0.25%
2001 1,595,590,500 80,076,800 1,720,600 2.15%
2002 1,688,065,200 84,633,100 2,048,200 2.42%
2003 1,754,022,160 104,069,97¢ 347,557 0.33%
2004 1,874,130,720 110,323,626 253,097 0.23%
2005 2,339,693,320 109,863,446 371,368 0.24%
2006 2,552,332,600 134,938,720 556,708 0.41%
2007 2,473,177,100 155,886,284 916,859 0.58%
2008 3,094,599,060 163,609,020 411,233 0.25%

Sources: Jefferson County and Shelby County Tax Assessors and Tax Collectors
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